
BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

INDEPENOENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members of

rAyodhyr Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Privatc Limittd

Report on the Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements

O5inion

We have audited the accompanying standabne lnd AS financial statements of Ayodhya Gorakhpr

SMS Tolls Private UdH ('Sre Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

2@3, and the Staternent of Profrt and Loss (including Other Compreheosive lrxorne), the Cash Fkar

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the

signifiaant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part thereof.

ln our opinif,n and to the best of our inforrnation and according b tfie explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies AcL 2013

(thr 'Aco in the manncr so requircd and gi\re a true and fak view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in lndia including lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') spetified

under Sect'ron 133 of the Act, of ttre state of affuirs (financhl positbn) of the Comparry as at 3l

March 2023, and its Profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash

floras end the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

8a:is of Oddon
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are fur*rcr

describad in the Auditor's Responsibilitbs for the Audit of the Financial Statements sectbn of our

reporL We are independent of the Company in accordance wi$ the Code of Ethics issued by the

lnstihrte of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relqrant

to our audit of the financial stat€ments under the provisions of the Companies Acq 2013 and the

Rules thereurder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the Code of Ethics- We believe that the audit evijence we harre obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to povide a basis for our opinbn

Emphasis on Matter

We draw attention to Note No. rt2 of the standalone financial statements, wherein the company is in

the process of nrerger with iB parent company SMS Limid after due apprwal oI the same. that

company will cease to exist and all the assets and liabilities will be subsumed in the rnerg€d entity.

Our opinbn k not modifieil in this matter
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Rerponribilitirs of Mrnrgnncnt rnd Thorc Chrrged with Govrrnuco for t{rr Strnddonc

Financial St tcrncnts

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act 2013 ('the Acf) with respect to the preparation of these standalone lnd AS financial

statements that give a true and {air view of the financial position, finarrcial perfo,rmance including

other comprehensive income, cash flows aM changes in equity of the Company in accordance with

the accounting principles generalty accepted in lndia, including the lndian Accounting Standards

(lnd AS) precribed under section 133 of the Act

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting polkies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasoflable and prudentr and design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate intemal financial controlt that were operating effectively for ensuring tle
accuracy and cornplebness of the accounting records, relerrant to the preparation and praentation

of the standalone lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatenrent whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial staterneflb mangernent is responsiHe for asrssiqg the Compaq/s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to l(uidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no rcalistic alternative but to do so.

The Eoard of Direcbrs are also respons'ble for overseeing the Companys financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuEnce about whether the fmancial statements as a

whole are fee from material misstatsment whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. ReasonaHe assurance is a high lerrel of assurarrce, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a

material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are

considered material if, indMduatly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expect€d -!o
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professbnal

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

202. 'KatngB Arcad€'. 2rld Floor. Opp. Bard( ot lndia,
Shanka. NaEBr Square, NAGPUR-10

to fraud or enor, design and perform audit procedures respomive to thote risks, and obtain

audit eviderre that is suffic'rent and aPpropriate to prwide a basis for our opinion. The risk

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frar.rd is h!]her than for one resulting
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

from enor, as fraud may invotve collusion, forgery, intentional omissiom, misrepresentations,

or the orrerride of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control rel€\rant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Acl we

are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has a@uate
intemal financial controls q6tem in place and the operating efktivenass of such contrds.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

Corrclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compan/s ability to

continue as a going concem. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, r,E are

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi! our opinion. Our corrlusbns are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report Horfle^/er, future

*€nts or conditbns may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the werall presentation, stucture and content of ttre financial statemeflts,

including the disclosures, and whether the finan€ial staternents represent tle undertyirg

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

and

We beliew that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate b praride basis fror

our audit opinion on Standalone Financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among otrer mattert the danned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

intemal control that ve irJenti{y during our audit

We also prwide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied wi$r

relsrant ethical requirements regarding independencq and to communicate with them all

relatkxships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independenc

where applicable, related safeguards.

e

Rcport on Other Lrgal and Rcgulatory Requirements

'1. As required I the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 C$€ order') issr.rcd by the Cental

Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the Annexure

A, a statem€nt on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent apdic

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act we report that

(a) We harc sought and obtained all the informatir:n and explanatkrns which to the best

knowledge ard belief wEre necessary for the purposes of our audit
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREO ACCOUNTANT

(b) ln our opinion, proper book of account es requircd by law relating to prrparation of Financial

Statement have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those

books-

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specif'el under Section 133 of ttre Ac! read with relevant rules there-under.

(e) On the basis of the written representaticns received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the direciorc is disqualifpd as on 31st March,

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1& (2) of the Act

(fl With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

company and the operating effectiveness of snch controls, refur to our separate report in Annexure

-8.

3. \r'lIrth respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in acordarxe with Rule

1 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our

infrormation and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litl;ation as at 3'1-03-2023 on its financial

poskion in Note No.34 of its Standalone Financial Staternenl

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whkh there

lvere ilny material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There are no amounts required to be transfened to the ln estor Educaticn and Protection Fund

by the Company during the year ended on 31't March 2023.

('w) (a) The Management has represented that ,to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts if any , have been advanced or loaned or

invested by the company to or in arry other person(s) or entlq^ies), including iorepn entities

("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

lntermediary shall, whether, dkectly or indkectly lend or invest in other persons or entlties identified

in any manner whaBoever by or on behalf of the company ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or prwide any

guarantee, security or the lke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented tlat ,to $e best of ifs knowledge and belief , no funds other

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts if any , have been receiyed by the company from any

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities fFunding Parties'), with the understanding,

whether recorded in writing or othemrise, that the company shall, whether, directty or indirectly, lend

or invest in other persons or efltities identifred in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party ("Uttimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

(c) Based on our audit procedures nothing has come to our notice that can causo us b baliev€ that

the representations under sub<lause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement

(v) The Company has neitfier declared nor paiJ any div'rlend during the year.

FOR BSVM and Associates

Charterad Accountants

FRN: 123161W

Pratcck Vaidya

Partner

M. No. I18792

Place Nagpur

Date: lO/O8/?023
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Annrnrru-A r.f.rEd to in our lndapandrnt Aurfitors' R.port to tho mrmbrrr of thc Compmy

on thc financial 3tatcment3 for thc ycar cndcd 31rt Marth 2023, we rcport thrt

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars and location of Property,

Plant and Equipment. The company has maintained proper records showing full partkulars of
intangible assets.

(b) As per information and explanatir:n given to us, The Company has a regular program of
physical verification of its Fixed assets under which Fixed assets are verified in a phased manner

over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the

Company and the nature of its assets. ln accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were

verified during the year and no mabrial discrepancies were noticed on such verifrcatron the

Property.

(c) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by u9 The Company does not own any immorable property, thus Para 3

(i) (c) is not applicable the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the

Company.

(d) The Company has not rerralued its property, plant and equipmeflt (including rbht of use of

assets) or intangible asset of both during the financial year.

(e) There is no any proceding have been initiated or pending against company for holding arry

beflami properv under the Benami Transactbns (Prohibitbfl) AcL 1988 (45 of 1988) aM rubs

made thereunder.

(a) The Company has conducted physical verificatbn of Inventory at regular intervals. The

discrepancies noticed on physical verification w.re not mabrial in relatbn tD the operations of the

Company and the same were dealt with in the books of account

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examinatirn of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctbn€d working

capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate {rom bank and financial institutbns on

the basis of security of current assets during the year.

ln our opinion and according to information and explanation given to ut The Comparry has made

investments in, prcnrided guarantee, aM granted loans or advance ir, nafure of loan , unsecured,

to companies or any other parties during the year. in respect of which:

e. fu per the informatbn and explanatbn given, the Company has provided loans, advance in

the nature of loan and guarantees O/s at the end o{ the year and details of which are

below:
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES

Particular Security Loans

Aggrcgat! amount grantld during the Year

-Subsidiary

-Associates

-Joint Ventures

-Others

Total

Aggregate Amount Ols at the Balance sheet

date:

-Subsidiary

-Associates 5,868.92 924.62

-Joint Ventures

-Others 43L.76

5,868.92 1,355.38

Out of Above Repayable on demand without

specifying any terms of Repayment
1,356.38

R. in Llhht

b. ln our opinion and according to the information and ex/anations given to us, the in\iestments

made, guarantees p,rovided, s€urity given and the terms and conditi<rns of the grant of all

loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the

Compaq/s .

c. The Company has granted the loans and advarrce as indicated above in the nature of loan

which are repayable on demand. During the year the Company has not demanCed such loans.

Since there were no stipr.rlatlxrs regarding payment of principal and the sarne is also repayable

on demand, the regularity of repayrnent could not be commented upon.

d. fucording to information and explanations gi\ren to us and based on the audit procdures

performed, in respert of loans and advance in the natrre of loan provided by the Company,

there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the bahnce sheet date as the

Company has not demanded such loans and advance in nature of loan, as the same has been

repayable on demand.

e. None of the loans granted and advances in the nahrre of loans by the Company have fallen

due during the year as the Company has not demanded such loans and advance in nature of

lorn repayable on demand.

Abo,e mentioned loans and advance in the nature of loan in clause (iii) (a) granted by the

Company are repayable on demand

iv. Based on management representation and independent opinion produced before us, tie company

has genarally complied with the prwisionc of Sectbn 185 of the act, with respect to the

made.

ASS]
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES

The company being engaged in providing infraskucture facilities and in pursuance to subsection

11 of section 185 of the companies act, the pro/isions of section 186 of the companies act is not

applicable to the company, except for subsection 1 related to inv€stments, f,rhich fle cornpany

has duly complied with

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

According to information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, on the basis of records

produced to us. prima facie, the cost records and accounts prescribed by the central government

under sectirn 148 (1) of the act have been maintained. We have, howarer, not made a detailed

examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the books of accoun| the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues of provident fund. employees state insurance, incorne tax, Goods and service bx

and other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.

(b) Details of dues of lncome-tax, Sales Tar Service Tax. Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and

Service Tax Value Added Tax and Any Other Taxes which have not been deposited as on March

11, 2023 on account of disputes are given hlow:-

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company does

not have any transactions not re<orded in the books of account whkh hrve been surrendered or

disclG€d es income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax,1951 (43 of

1961).

ma

o
a!*

Amount

Unpaid (Rs.

crore)

Name of
Statute

ofNature

Dues

Forum *rhere

Dispute is

Pending

Period to
which

Amount

Reletcs

Arnount

I nvolved

(Rs. crore)

lncome Tax
Commisioner
Appeals

AY 2015-16 4.5? 0.47
lncome Tax

Act

g\lncome Tax
Act

lncomc Tax
Commisioner
Appeals

AY 2016-17 6.76

Centrel
Proc.ssing
Centre

AY 202r-22 0.95 0.95

\
lncome Tax

Act
lncome Tax

Adjudicating
Authority

Tilliune
2017

17.39 17.39
Service Tax

Act
Service Tax

FRI12316lV
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

tx (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there were no

material defaults in repayment of loans or other bonoarings or in the payrnent of interest thereon

to any lender during the year.

(b) The company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other

lender, hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) The company has not obtained any term loan during the yea4 herrce this clause is not

applicable.

(d) The company has not raised any short-term fund; hence this clause is not applicable;

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiariet associates orFint \rentures; hence this clause is not applkable.

(0 The company has not raised company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of

securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies; hence this clause is not

applicable.

x. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(lncluding debt instruments) during the year.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures (futly, partially or optionally convertible) during the yea[ hence this clause

is not applicable.

xl (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company

or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reportd during the course

of our audit

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the

auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 with the Central Government hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) We have neither aome across any instance of whistle-blower complaints nor have trye b€en

informed of such case by the management

xii. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

EO

xIt. According to information and explanatircns gi\ren to us and based on ow examination

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

and 188 of the Act where applkable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The company has an internal audit qt/stem commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

(b) The reports of the lnternal Auditors for the period under audit were considered during the

audit

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors

or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(w) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia

Act 1934.

(b) The Company is not has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities;

hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Resenre Bank of lndia; hence this clause is not applicable.

(d) The Company does not have any ClC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financbl year and in the immediately

preceding financial year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applkable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)

of the Order is not applicable

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanatbns given to us, there is no unspent

amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any pro$t
Accordingly, clauses 3(n<)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of *re Order are not applicable. S)

tiiN
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xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realisation of financ'lal assets and payment of financial liabilities,

other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors

and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one

year from the balance sheet date. We, howerrer, state that this is not an assurance as to the future

viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date

of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company

as and when they fall due.



BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

ln our opinaon and according to the information and explanations given to ut there is no unspent

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project

Accordingly, clause 3(>uXb) of the Order is not applicable

xxt. ln our opinion, the financial statements are standalone; Hence paragraph 3(xxi) is not applicable.

FOR BSVM and Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 12316rW

Prateek Vaidya

Partner

M. No. 118792

Place: Nagpur

Date: 3O/O8/2023

FRt i23161W
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Annerure I to the Auditors' ReDort

R.port ort thc lntrrnal Fnmdal Coolrols under Carse (i) of sub.s&&n 3 d S€ctio{r 1/*l of the CdlDdlhs Aat,
2013 ('thc Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ayodhya GoGkhpur SMS Tolls Private
Umited ('the Company') as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction wth our audit of the findalone IND AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

ManaS€fi ent's R€sponslblllty lor lntemal Finandal Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establ'rshing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
componenti of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Confols over Financial
Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and mainte{ance of adequate internal financial mntrols that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busin6s, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accurary and completeness of
tha accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act 2013.

Audltors' Responsiblllty

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
bescd on our audit. Wc conductrd our audit in accordance with thc Guidancc Nota on Audit of lntcrnrl Financial
Conlrols over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and
desned to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to th! extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethic.l requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
coBtro'ls systcm over frnarrcial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
overfinancial reporting included obbining an understanding of internal financial cont ols overfinancial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and erraluating the design and opercting
eff€ctiven€ss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment including the assessment of the risk of material missbtemeat of the financial sffiemslts, wtrether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that tie audit evideme we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinron on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

AS

i.r)a 202 &lhgaArcade m
* Sha,lt Nag,
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BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls oyer Financjal Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reportinB is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance tegarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial over
financial reporting included those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of record that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that kansactions are recordcd as nacessary to permit prcparation of financial
st tcm.nts in accordarce with ganarally acclptld accounting principles, rnd that recripts and exp.ndlturc of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of the Management and directors of the
company; and (3) providc ressonable assurance rcE3rding prcvention or timaly detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's ass€ts that could have a rnaterial efiect on the financial
statements.

lnhermt Umitations of lntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitauons of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material missfatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any erraluation of the intemal financial controls over financial
reporting of future periods are subje€t to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procadures may deteriorate.

Opinioo

ln our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting werc operEting effcctively as at
31st March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance Note on Audit of lnternal
Financial Control5 Over Financial ReportinS issu€d by the lnstitute of Chartered Accouhtants of lndia.

FOf BSI,M and Associates
chartered Accountants
FRN: l2316tW

Prate€k V.idy.
hrtnar
M. No. 11fr92
Place: tilag:pur
Dare:tol08,12o23

l

N2, "Kalinga Arc.de', 2nd Floo., Opp Bank o, lndi€,
Shaokar Nagsr Square. NAGPUR- tO

Pn. : O712-25e0216. 2555OO5
E-mail : prashontbanthie@gmail.com
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AYODHYA GORA(HPUR SMs TOI.I.S PRIVATE TIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Particulars
Notes As at 31 Mar.h 2023

I Lakhs
As at 31 March 2022

a Lekhs

3.03

17,263.53

57.72
5,732.65

L7,768.65

0.32
.551 L7 74

.47

0.06
9.20

1,356.38

88.56

75

27.87
7,7a7.0r
2,834.69

7 .88
262.671 901.62

7 538.68

1,600.00

7 18.49

1,600.00

9,138.68 9,118.49

5,499.56

6.72

39.10

6,064.01

20.83

5,506.29

1,476,47

2,516.01

6,001.54
235.38
707.44

!0,276.U
783.13

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabllifies

Borrowings
Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and smal
Total outstanding dues of c.editors other
and smallenterp.ises

Other Financial Liabilities
Provisions

Other Current t-iabilities

I Non-Current t-iabilities

TotalE and Liabilities

EqUITY AND LIABILITIES:

Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
TotalEquity

i) lnvestments

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Other Non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equjpment
Other lntangible Assets
FinancialAssets

ASSETS:

Non-current assets

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

Curtent Assets
Inventories
FinanaialAssets
i) Trade Receivables
ii) Cash and Cash Equivalent
iii) Loans

Other CurrentAssets

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabllities:
Provisions

tease tiabilities

I enterprises
than micro

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

8

13

74

17

18

19

20
21

9

10

11

L2

15 262.61 901.62

Significant Accou nting policies 
z

Notes to Financialstatements 3-44
The notes referred to above {6rm an integralpart ofthe standalone financialstatements
tu Per Our report of even date attached
For BSVM and Associat". 

For and On Behalf ofthe Board of DirectorsChartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 123161W Ayodhya GorakhpursMs Tolls Private timited

CA Prateek Vaidva
Partner
Membership No.118792
Date: 30th August 2023
Placei Nagpur

trDlN:

*

p BhawarlalSurana
Managing Directol

DIN:00953495

Akshay AbhaySancheti
Director

DIN:07564977

]st\LTsL0qNYDl 
3+5! Ankita Hande

Company Secretary

6,123.93

15

16

3

4

5

6

7

N
Badrish Naklak

Chief Financial Ofti.er
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AYODHYA GORAXHPUR SMS TOI-I.S PRIVAT€ LIMITEO
Statement ot Profit and Losslor the riod ended 31st Merch 2023

For and On Behalf of the Board of Oirectors
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS To s private Limited

Badri5h Naklak
Chiet Finan.ial Ofiicer

Ankita llande
Colnpa ny Secretary

CA Prateek Vaidya

Membership No. 118792
Date:30th August 2023
Place: Nagpur

Dilip thawartatSurana
Man.glng Diredo.

DIN:00953495

Akshay Abhay Sancheti
Director

O1Ni07564977

dr*

Particulars
For the Period erd€d 31

March 2023
a Lakh3

For the P€riod e.ded 31
Matci 2022

? Lakhs

11.981.84

195.54
22,987.A2

197.30

77.38 23,L79.lL

311.19

3,65X.31

838.1s

5,900.91

354.67

505.12

547.m

695.04

. 690.78

1,120_87

1t358.76
1,095.7A

7,492.07

661.73
12,108.:t4

69.04
22,115.03

1,054.08

48.86 74.15

189.70

22.04

48.86 36.98
20.18 1,027.LO

(0.88)

x

vrit

IX

lr

V

Profit From Continuing Ope.. ons (V-Vt)

Other Compreb€nsive tncome/(Loss) rrom Continu€d Operations
(i) ltems that wall not be reclassified to profat or loss :

(ii)lncome Tax relating to above itemsthat willnot be classified to profit & toss.
Other Comprehenslve tncooe/(Loss) from continued op€rations (Net ofTax)

Total Comprehensiv€ tncome/(Loss) trom continued ope.atlons (VI +VIt)
(Comprlsing Prolit and OtherComprehehsive tncome for the p€.lodl

Baslc and Oiluted EarninSs per share (.)

lTax Expense

Revenue from Operations

Other lncome

Erpcnses

MaterialConsum€d
Operating & Maintenance Exp€nses
Employee Eenefits Expense
D€preciation and Amortization Expense
Finance Cost5

Other Expenses

(a) Exchange Fluctuations
(b) Other Expenses

rotalExpense (tV)

Profit Aefore Tax ( t-tv)
lncome Tax Expense
(1)CurrentTax
(2)Deferred Tax

(3) Mat Credit Entiflement

29

22

23

24

23

26

3&4
27

28A

288

20.ra

0.13

1,026.22

5.41

SlSnifica nt Accou ntinS policies

Notesto Financia I Statements 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part ofthe standalone financial ,t"t"r"ntr3 
{

As PerOur report of even date attached
For BSVM and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Fhm Reg. No.123161W

N\



AYODHYA GORAKHPUR sMS TOI.I.S PRIVATE I.IMITED
Statement ofchanges in equity for the period ended 31st March 2023

B. OTHER EQUITY

A. EQUTTYSHARE CAPITAL Amount in I Lakhs)

d!ri theChan in

Balance as at l April 2021

share ca
1,600.00

ldurin the year

Balan ce as at 3l March 2022
Cha share cau

1,600.00

Bala nce as at 3l March 2023 600.0o

t Lakhs
Attributable to the holders

Reselves and SurplusPadiaularc

Retained Earn FVTOCI Reserve
Total €quity

(70.88)

88)

6,492.28

1,027.10

17L.76) 7,51A.49

tu at l April 2021
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Less: Bonus Shares issued during the year
Less: lnterim Dividend paid

Balanae as at 31 Marah 2022
7

7,518.49

17!.76) 7,578.49

20.18

7,670.43 (71.76! 7,538.68

As at l April 2022
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Less: Bonus Shares issued durinS the year
Less: lnterim Dividend paid

Balan.e as at 31Mar.h 2023 7,610.43
7 538.58

Sisnificant Accounting policies

Notes to Financia I Statements 2

The notes referred to abore fo.m 
", integr"rpart ofthe standarone financiarstate3mlnts

As Per Our repoft ofeven date attached
For BSVM and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.123161W

For and On Behalfofthe Board of Directors
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls prlvate Limited

CA Prateek Vaidya
Partner

Membership No. U8792
Date: 3fth August 2023
Place: Nagpur

Dilip BhawarlalSurana
Managing Oirector

DIN:00953495

@)t'M"
Badrish Naklak

Chief Flnan.ial Offi.er

Akshay Abhay Sanchetj
Di,edor

DIN:07564S77

CoInpanySecretary

NY'-.

Items of OCt

6,563.15

1,027.10

7,590.25

7,590.25

20.18



AYOOHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVAIE TIMITED
Cash Flow Statement Ior the year ended 31st March 2023

a Lakhs
Paniculars Not€s Year Ended

31st March 2023
YearEnded

31st March 2022

CASH FI.OW FROM OPERATING ACIIWES:

Profit / llossl before t.x
Adjusments for:

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Finence Charges

Fair Valuation Loss/(Profit) on Equity tnstruments

Fixed Assets Written Off

Profit on sale ofFixed Assets

Operating cash profit / (tosslbetore worktng capitalchenges

Adjustments for changes in worklngcapital

(lncrease) /decrease in Tred€ recetvable

(lncrease) /decreas€ in tnventory

{lncrease) /decrease in Other Financial Assets

(lncrease) /de€rease in Current Financialfusets- Others

(lncrease) / decrease in Other Current Assets

lncrease /(decrease)in Trade payables - Short Term

lncrease/(decrease) inCurrent FinanEiat tiabilities-Others

lncrease /(decrease)in Short Term provision

lncrease/ (decrease) in Other Current Liabitities

lncrease / {decrease)in LongT€rm provision

lncrease/(decrease) in Lease Liabitities

Cash ge$erated / (used)from ope@tions

(2s.66)

12,416.92)

(204.33)

(214.s6)

l1O7.44)

(s,499.56)

l.6.72)

144.19

117.10)

0.23

190.88

(421.68)

184.63

15.84

(28s.84)

1,054.08

(188.18)

3,4

27

2a

2A

23

23

5,900.91

297.19

s05.12

15.90

(s.37)

(180.88)

16,358.76

833.55

7,492.07

6,501,91 19,550.28

27.41

88.56

0.32

(14801.28)

(18.s4)

(1,816.s9)

74.94
Net cash intlow / (outflow)from opeiatingectivities (A) (1,85s.45) 4,476.66

11,637.2s)

CASH FLOW'ROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase ofProperty, Plant & Equipment including CWtp, intangible assets

Sale of Fixed Assets

Loans and Advan€e made , Given

toans and Advenca made - Repayment Re€eived

Interest Rec€ived

(141.39)

16.59

(1,238.331

2,716.64

180.88

(s32.19)

541.11

188.18
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investinS adivitles (B) 1,534.50 {1,i140.141

CASH FLOW FROM IINANCING AcnvlIES:
Proceeds f rom borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Processing Fees paid

lnterest paid
21

9,668.11

l1o,8|7.7al

15,090.98

(17,520.60)

67.89

(833.ss)(297.19)
Net cash inflow/ {outflow) from linancinS activities (C ) {1,446,851 {3,19s.27)

Net increase / (decreesel tn cesh and cash equivatents (A+B+C)

Add: Cash and cash equivatents at the begtnninS ofthe year

11,777.8L1

1,787.O7

9.20

(158.7s)

7,945.76

L,747.0L
Cash and cesh equivalents atthe end ofthe

69.04

4,491-61

48.86

N\



Cash and Cesh equivalents includes as at 31n Merch,2o23

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Cash on hand

Ealance with banks in currentaccounts

Balance with banks in deposit accounts

o.1a

6.24

11.84

128.45

1,646.72

10

10

10

Cash and cash equlvalents at rhe end of the ye.r 9.20

Notes:

1)The cash flow statement has be€n prepared under lndirect Method as perAccounding Standard (tnd AS) - 7 ,statement ofCash Flows,'

2)AIlfigures in bracket are outflow.

3)Directtaxes paid aretreated as arising from operating activities and.are not bifurcat€d between tnvesting and financinS activities.

4) Previous year figures have been recast / restated wherever necessary.

Movement in Borrowings

Particulars 3l March 2022 Cash Flows 31 March 2023

Long Term Eorrowings

ShortTerm Eofiowings (refer note no 19) 5,149_94 266.79 6,016.73

TotalBorrowings s,149.94 256,79 6,016,73

As Per Our report of even date
For BSVM and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Eirm Regn. 123151W

CA Prateek Vadiya

M No 118792

Datei 30th August 2023

Place:Nagpur

For and On Eehalfofthe goard of Directors

Ayodhya Go6khpur SMS Tolls Private Limhed

BhawarlalSurana

Managing Director

DIN:00953495

Akshay Abhay Sancheti

Dircator

DIN:07564977

v)il* Yr

Badrish Naklak

Chiet Financiel Olriccr
Ankita Hande

CompanySecretary

\7a7,OL
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Notes to Financi.l Statements as at 3lst March,2023

NOtE 3. PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT . AS At 3ISt MArCh 2023

202t202a
202301,2022

NETATOCK

2023 2022

TollCollection System

45.37

11.83

14.80

108.97

773_40

301.88

596,25

o:'o

0.40

45_47

7,52

14,80

103.66

42.01

302

4.31

0-00

5.71

31.33

40.75

11.11

13.72

84.99
1o7.66

281.49

7.44

0.11

0.37

5.02

0.0s
20.39

4.O7

4.i|8

29.16

o.74

7.23

1.57

4.61

0.71

1.68

23.99

5.74

20.39

0,50 555.40 41.34 539.12 s28.77 27.3' 38.32 3.03 57.72

t - As At 31st Merch 2023

- Ar At 313t March 2022

rheProjecthas been successfullY completed on o2nd october 2022 and alr the.ss€ts oth€r th.n showtr in N€t Brock above have b€en sot./dhposed off

h I Lskhs

01,2021 2022 01,2021 2022

38.72

10.81

72.49

79.32

707.42

264.26

2.03

0_30

0.63

5.66

0.24
17.23

40.7s
11.11

13.12

84.99

107_66

281.49

513.04 26-08 539.12

NET BIOCK

2022 2021

TollColledion system

43.49

11.83

14.80

98.3s
113_40

301.77

5a3.Or

1.88

10,62

o.77

45,3t
11.83

14.80

108.97

113.40

301.a8

4.76

7.02

2.31

19.03

5.98

36,91

13.21 596.25
57.72 70.00

42.!9
7.15

11.49

85.52

77.94

301,88

4.67

o.77

1.68

23.99

5.74

20.39

NN
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Nole 4 - lntant,ble Asrets , as at 31st March 2023

l€ Assets -as at 31st March 2023

The Proiect hat been successtully cornpleted on o2nd october2022and allthe tntaDsible alsets have been written/dtsposed ofI

ble Assets -as at 31st March 2022

lntanaible A5s€t!:
TollCollection Riehts
RiSht to use Asset

lnt.nglble Ass.ts:
Toll Colle€tion Rights

RiShtto use Asset

a.cumulated De

AatAprll0l,
2022

Deductions/
As at March 31,2023

Gross Blo.*
Addiiion / Net Block

As at April0l,
2022

Dedurtions/
Adjustm€nts

CherBe tor the
pertod

As .t March 31,
2023

As at March 31,

2022

99,979.78

58.49
146.65 1,@,126.43

58.49
94,252.A9

52.72

1.W,726.43

52.72
5,873.54

Iotal 1,00,038.26 146.65 1,00,184.92 94,305.61 1,00,179.1s 5,873.54 5,732.55

ln a Lakhs

ln a Lakhs

As at April01,
As at March 31,20222021

Gross Bloak

Addition / Deductions / Net Block
As at Apdl01,

202a
Deductions/ Char8e for the As at March 31,

2022
As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,

202L

22

98,355.71

58.51
7,624.O7

(0.02)
99,979_7a

58.49
77,937.52

35.42
16,315.38

17.30
94,252.89

52.72
s,126.aA

5.77
20,4ta.79

23.09

Total 1,624.07 (0.021 1,00,038.26 17,972.93 15,332.58 5,732.65 20,44L.28

N\

As at March 31,2023

5,726.88

5.77

94.305.51



1 Corporate inform.tion
AYoDHYA GoRAKHPUR sMs ToLLs PRIVATE LIMITED is a Private Limited company domiciled in tndia and incorporated under the
provisions of the companies Act, 1956. NHAI has granted a contract to the company to Operate, Maintain and Transfer (.oMI,) of
National Highwav No. 28 ('NH 28') under the concession Agreement dated Sth March 2013 for a period of 9 years. The said project shall
include construction on the site of the project facilities, operation and maintenance of the project highway and performance and
fulfillment of all other obligations ihcidental thereto. The Project has been succesfully completed on o2nd october 2022 and the stretch
has been handed over to NHAt.
Statement of Sitnificant Accountint policies
Basis of preparation:
These financial statements ofthe company for the year ended March 31, 2023 along with comparative financial information for the year
March 31, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting standards (hereinafter referred to as the,tnd As,) as
notified by MinistrY of corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 ('Act,) read with Rule 3 of the companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Historical Cost Conventioni
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabitities that are
measured at fair value;
Current non-current classirication :

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in
the schedule lll to the companies Act.2013. Based dn the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current - noncurent classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency:
These standalone financial statements are presented in lndian rupees, which is the company's funstional currencl. All amounts have
been rounded to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting iudgements and key sources of estimation uncenainty:
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with lnd As requires use of estimates and assumptions for some items, which
might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (standalone) balance sheet and (stand;lone) statement of profit and
loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates,
Estimates and assumptions are required in particularfor:

a) Property, plant and equipment :

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be
capitalized useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in schedule ll of the companies Act, 2013. ln cases, where the
useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule ll, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the
asset, the estimated usage of the a9set, the operating conditions of the asset, past hlstory of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, manufacturers'warranties and maintenance support. Assumptiong also need to be made, when the company assesses,
whether an asset may be capitarised and which components ofthe cost ofthe asset may be capitarised.
capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cos! comprisinS of direct costs,
related incidental expenses and attributable interest if anv.
Recotnition of deferred tax assets :

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it i5 probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The management is reasonably certain that taxable prolits
will be available to absorb carried forward losses while recognising deferred tax assets.
Recotnition and mearurement of other provisions :
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and onpast experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore
vary from the figure included in other provisions.
Discountint of lonS-term financial instruments :

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. ln case of financial instruments which arerequired to subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.
Overlay Erpenditu,e:

As per the concession Agreement entered with NHAI , the company has a contractual obligation to caray out resurfacing /overlay of theroads under concession Provision for overlay in respect of toll roads maintained by the company under service concession
arrangements and classified as intangible assets represents contractual obligations to restore an infrastructure facilities to a specifiedlevel of serviceability in respect of such asset and hence has recognised the same as an upgrade service and as intangible asset, thetiming and amount of such asset are estimated and recognised on a discounted basis. Estimate of the provision is miasured using anumber of fadors such as contractual requirements ,technology , expert opinions and expected price level . Because actual cash flows
can differ from estimates due to changes in laws ,regualtions, public expectation .technology,prices and conditions and can take place
many years in the future , the carrying amounts of provisions is reveiwed at retular intervals and adjusted to take account of such
changes.

2

2.L

2.2

2.3

b)

c)

d)

e)

AYODHYA GORAXHPUR SMS T0I.t5 PRIVATT TIMITEO
Notes to Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023:

N\



2.4

2.5

Measu,ement of fair values:
The companys accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of lair values for financial instruments. when measuringthe fair value of a financial asset or a financialliability, fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based onthe inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,
tevel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level l that are observable for the asset or llability, either directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Lever 3: inputs for the asset or riabirity that are not based on observabre market data (unobservabre inputs)-
The company recognises transfers due to change between levels ofthe fair value hierarchy at the end ofthe reporting period.

Sitnifi cant accountint policies
Property, Plant, Equipment
a) Recognition and measurement
Property, Plant, Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. cost comprises the purchaseprice' any costs directlv attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in themanner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site onwhich it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs. either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used theitem during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.
lncome and expenses related to the incidental operatjons. not nece.r" ry io Lring re it"m to the location and condition necessary for itto be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or loss.
lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment isrecognised in profit or loss.
b) Depreciation / amortiuation
Depreclation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down value over the estimated useful life ofthe assets.
oepreciation on addition/deletion of fixed assets during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of addition/ deletion.Fixed assets costing up to' 5,000 individually are fully depreciated iothe yea. of purchase.
Useful life of the asset is taken, as specified in Schedule ll of the Compani;s Act, 2013,,
c) Subsequent Expenditure:
subsequent Expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flowto the Company.
d) lmpairment of fixed assets:
The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists.lf the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount.The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, inwhich case any impairment loss ofthe revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is availablefor that asset.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. value in use is arrived at by discounting the futurecash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.
when there is indication that an impairment loss recognl."a ro, un asui ro*rer than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods nolonger exists or may have decreased, such Reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and Loss, to the extentthe amount was previousrv charsed to the statement of profit and Los. rn case Jf revarue;;;;;;; ;;;"r;i'o 
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i)

ii) lntangible assets
TollCollection Rights
a) Recotnition and Measurement
Toll collection rights are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. cost includes:
Contractual Upfront / monthly fortnightly payments towards acquisition
b) Contractual obliaation to restore the infrastructu,e to a specified level of serviceability
ln case of concession arrangements under of such costs are estimated and recognised on a discounted basis by charging costs torevenue on the units of usage method i.e. on the number of vehicles expected to use the project facility , oveiiifertod at the end ofwhich the overray is estimated to be carried out based on technicar evarution by independent expens.
c) Amortisation of intangible asset under SCA
The intangible rights realtion to infrastructure assets , which are recognised in the form of rights to charge users of the infrastructureassets are amortized by taking proportionate of actual traffic count for the period over total projected traffic count from project to costof intan8ible assets l e proportionate of actual traffic count from the intangible assets expected to earned over the balance concessionperiod as estimated by management
d) Accounting of receivable and payable from / to the trantor
when the arrangements has a contractual obligation to pay cash or other finanacial asset to the grantor speifiacally towards theconcession arrangements during the cohstruction period or otherwise, such unconditional obligati-ion to pJf castr is recorded asfinancial liabilities on the date when the obligation arises accordance.with rnd As 109 Financial lnstruments at amonise cost, with acorresponcing recognisation of an intangible asset. Thereafter, the unwinding of interest recognised based of effective interest ratemethod , also becomes erigibre for capitarisation on quarifying assets being rerated to rntangibre Gets.



iii) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs related to borrowing that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Eorrowing costs include interest
costs measured at Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Ancillary borrowing costs are amortised over the tenure ofthe loan.
Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of cost of such assets till
the time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying assets is the one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recorded as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. Ancillary borrowing
costs are amortised over the tenure of the loan.

lnitial recognition and measurement:
Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets , other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets , as appropriate. on initial recognition. Transaciion costs directly attributable to the
acquisition offinancial assets at FyrPL are recognised iilmediately in statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collectin8 contractual cash flow9, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (sppl) on
the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the orofit or loss. This cate(orv qenerally aDplies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrumentr at FVOCI

A 'debt instrument' i5 measured at the Fair value throuSh other comprehensive income(Fvocl) if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a bLlsiness model whose obiective i5 achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets., and

b) Contradual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (Sppl) on
the principal amount outstanding.
For assets classified as subsequently measured at FVOcl, interest revenue, expected credit losses, and foreign exchange gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Other 8ains and losses on remeasurement to fair value are recognised in OCl. On derecognition, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCt is reclagsified from equity to profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value throuth profit and loss (FVTPL)
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization a5 at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FwpL.
ln addition, the group may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FwpL.
Debt instruments included within the FVIFI- category are measured at fai. value with all changes recogniled in the profit and loss.

Equity lnstruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVIpt )
The company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, .ioint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and
loss However where the company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value gains and
losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income (currently no such choice made), there is no subsequent
reclassiflcation, on sale or otherwise, offair varue gains and rosses to the statement of profit and Loss.

iv) Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
A Financiai asrets
Classification

The company shall classify Ilnancial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.
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Derecotnition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a flnancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have o(pired, or
- The compnay has transferred its riShts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an oblitation to pav the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through, arrangement; and either
(a)the Company has transferred substantially allthe risks and rewards ofthe asset. or
(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

when the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of owners.hip. when it has neither transferred nor retained
substantiallv all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing lnvolvement. ln that case, the Company also iecognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has
retained.

continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount ofthe asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Companv could be reouired to reoav.
lmpairment of financial assets:
Financial assets of the company comprise of trade receivable and other receivables consisting of debt instruments e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measu.ed at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provirion for impairment. An impalrment loss for trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amouhts due accordinS to the original
terms ofthe receivables. lmpairment losses if any, are recognised in profit or loss for the period..

B. Financial liabilities
Financial instruments with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets is recognised as financial liability by the
Company.

Classification

The company classifies all financial liabitities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value
throuSh prorit or loss. such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

hitial recognition and measurement

Derecogrition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obliSation under the liabillty is discharged or cancelled or expires. when an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability.
The differe;ce in the respective carrving amounts is recogniged in the statement of proflt or loss.

Offsettint of fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and linancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

vi) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the 8roup, a5 lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership areclassified as finance leases Finance leas€s are capitalised atthe lease's inception atthefairvalue ofthe leased property or, if lower, thepresent value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowingsor other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and fiiance cost. The finance cost ischarged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of theliability for each period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownerchip are not transferred to the group as |essee are classified asoperating leases' Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessorfare cha.ged to profit or Ioss ona straieht-line hasig over the oeriod ofthe lease-

vii) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

viii) Cash and cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity ofthree months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash.flows, cash and cash equivallnts consist of cash and shon-term deposits, as defined above.



ix) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contintent assets
A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financialstatements.
Further, Iong term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding ofthe
discount is recognised as finance cost. A provision lor onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, theComoanv recotnises anv impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue ,ecotnition:
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company, the revenue can be reliably
measured and no significant uncertainty as to the measurability and collectability exists. The company derives revenues primarily fromtoll colledion and construction contracts of extra work awarded by NHAI.
Effective April 1, 2018, the company adopted rND As 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognized on following basis i

x)

Revenue from toll correction is recognised on actual coflections oftofl dnd in case of contra ctual terms with certain customers the sameis recognised on an accrual basis

Year ended

Revenue faom Conttruction Contracts
contract revenue and contract cost associated with the construction, where performace obligations are satisfied over time and wherethere is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively as perpercentage of completion method of the projects at the balahce sheet date. when there is uncertainty as to the measurement orultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended have been ured tomeasure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Maintenance revenue lsrecognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement.
lf total cost is estimated to exceed total contract revenue, the company provides for foreseeable loss. contract revenue earned inexcess of billing has been reflected as unbilled revedue and billing in excess of contract revenue has been reflected as unearnedrevenue.

Other income:
- lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective rate of interest.where the loan is repayable on demand, interest income has been recognized on the basis of actual interest charged.- Dividend jncome is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the company's right to receive payment is 

"]rr"bt,.t "o.
Revenue (Rs Lakhs) for the years ended March 31,2023 and March 31,2022 are as folowsi

Particular Year ended
31sl March, 202231st Ma.ch, 2023

xi)

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 11,981.84 22,9a1.a2

Retirement and othe. employee benefits
a)Short term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employeebenefits Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-graiia are recognized in the period in which the employeerenders the related service A liability is recognised for the amount expicted to be paia it the cornpanv ir, " pr"rent le8al orconstructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation cin be estjmatedreliably.

b) Post Employment Employee Benelits
Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to government provident funds, gratuity fund and Employees state lnsurance.

Revenue from Toll Collection
Revenue from Construction

77,793.27

188.54
22,946.24

35.58

Defined contribution plans
The company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee state rnsurance and Maharashtra Labourwelfare Fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss in the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective Funds.

Tollcollection



Deffned benefit plans
Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by
estimatinS the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method. which recognizes each period of service
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present

value of the obligation under defined benelit plan, are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date. Remeasurement of the net defined beneflt liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding

interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive tncome. Ner
interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a
result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benelit plans

are recognised in Statement of Prorlt and Loss.

xii) lncome Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with lncome Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences
between the carrylnS amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reportinS pt rposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and
Reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or sirbstantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that future tarable profits will be available aSainst which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reduclions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set olf current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same
taxable entity.
Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not
recognised. oeferred tax assets / liabilities in respect of temporary differences that ori8inate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax ho,iday period are recoSnised. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the vear-end based on
th€ tax rates and laws enacted or substantiallv enacted on the balance sheet date.
lvlinimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which given future economic benellts in the form of ad.iustment to
future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognlsed as an asset when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
entity.

xiii) Eajnings Per Share
a) Easic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners ofthe Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

b) Oiluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the fiSures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the converion of all dilutive
Ootential equiW shares.

xiv) lnventories
Construction materials, components, stores, spares and tools
They are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in first out basis and comprise all cost of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to
their present location and condition.

work-in-progress and finirhed goods

They are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of overheads based
on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated contract price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated cost5 necessary to complete the contract.
Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the p;oduction of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases
where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost ofthe finished products will exceed their net realisable value.
lncase if any payment for inventory is deferred beyond normal credit terms then cost is determined by discounting the future cash flows
at an interest rat€ determined with reference to market rates. The difference between the total cost and the deemed cost in such cases
are recognised as interest expense over the period offinancing under the effective interest method.
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xv) Disclosure on lnd-As 115 Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has adopted lnd As 116 'Leases', applied to all leases contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective method alonS with the transition option to reco8nise Ri8ht-To-use asset (Rou) at an amount equal to the lease
liability.

ln statement of profit and loss for the current year, the nature ofexpenses in respect ofoperating leases has changed from lease rent in
previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset and finance costs for interest accrued on lease liability.
The effect ofdepreciation and interest related to Right of u5e Asset and Lease Liability are reflected in the Statement of profit and Loss
under the heading "Other Expenses,, under Note No 28.

xvi) Recent Amendments
Ministry of corporate Affai.s (McA), notified new standards or amendments to the existing standards under companies (lndian
AccountinS standards) Rules as issued from time to time. on March 31, 2023, McA notified the companies (tndian Accountihg
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 applicable from April 01, 2023 to the Copany as below:a. lnd AS 101 : First Time Adoption of tndian Accounting Standards

b. lnd AS 102: Share-based payments

c. lnd AS 103 : Business Combinations
d. lnd AS 107 : Financial tnstruments Disclosures
e. lnd AS 109 : Financial lnstruments
f. lnd AS 115 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers
g. lnd AS 1 : Presentation of Financial Statements
h. lnd AS 8 i Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erro6
i. lnd AS 12 : lncome Tax
j. lnd AS 34 : lnterim Financial Reporting

The company does not expect these amendments to have any significant impact on the Financial Statements.



Note 5 Notr,C'lrent tinanciatAssets lnvestments
ln ! Lakhs

3lsl March 2023
Inv.rtm.nts tn Eouitv tnnrum.ots (fulv ostd_ool

Quot.d
Shares ot DhaniSeNices
(No - 14,10,944 shares of face Vatue Rr 1O/- each)

Unquot€d

58,45,540 Equity shares ofSpark M.[ and parking private Ltd
(No - 58,45,540shares oftace Value Rs tO/, each)

hv€ltmcnts ln Pr€ferenc€ Shar.s {tu[v oetd_upl
Unquoted

1,00,00,m0 Preference shares ofspark Ma and parking pvt Ltd

374_67

s,868.92

5,020.00

819-72

5,020.00

Grahd Torat

Note 5 DetErred Tar Arsets

i) Mov€ment of Deferr€d Tar Ass€tr:

11,253.53 11,768.65

+ DHAI{I SERVICES

1) Th€ company purchased 14,10,944/- numberotshares durinS th€ FY 2G21 at totat v.luation of Rs 23,07,94,986/-. Average prrchase price pershare is 163 5Z_ a5 on 31st Ma rch 2o21 thE value per sha re has ln€reased to Rs 168.10/-. Hencg fair va tue of shares as on 31st M.rch 2o2 twas Rs 23,71,79,686/-.
2) a5 on 31st March 2022 th€ value p€r share has decreased to Rs 62.35/-. Hencg fair vatue of shares as on 3tst March 2022 was Rs8,79,7235A/ -.

3) tu on 3lst March 2023 thevalue pershare ha5 decreased to Rs 26.5s/,. Hence, fairvatue ofshar€s as on 31st March 2023 was Rs
3,7 4,@,s531-.

' Spart MellAnd P.rting priv.t€ Limfted
1) Thecompanv has purchased 58,45.s40 numberofequitv shares ofspa.k Matl& parkint private Limited from sMs timited (6olding

Comp. ny) for conside.ation amounting to Rs.S8,68,92,216/-.
2) The above equ ity shares have been pledSed with the hdia butt5 Housint tin.nce Ltd. atainst toan taten byspark MaI & parking p\.t. ttd. forprovidint secu rity to tndia bulls Housint Finance Ltd w.e.f 04.04.2020.
3) lnvestm€nt in Pr€ference shares of spart Msll a nd Parkint Private Limited h6ve been sotd by the company vide Eoard Approvat on 19th ap.it2023 to Maharashtra Enviro Powerlimited for a consideration fo Rs 5o,2o,oo,mo/- (Rupees Fifty crores Twenty taths onty)r€ceived in 2tranches on 24th & 25th Aprit2023.

As at
3rst Mar.h 2023

opening balance of defered tax asset
22.O4Charred / Credited to

C osi n8 balance ofdeferred tax asset 122.O4

ii)Current lncome Tax

rent Year lax Expense (Net of MATCreditj
Deferred Tax Expense

lncome tax exp.nse r€ported-n the stateftent of profit and toss

C!
3lsi March 2023 3lrt Ma.ch 2022

48.86 14.94

22.U
48.86 35.98

iii) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate as per tND AS t2:

llst March 2022Profit / {loss} betore td
Applicable Tax Rate

Tax at Statutory Rate

69.04

27.82%

19.21

132.91

(111.71)

8.46

1,064.08

27.A2%

296.03

354.34

(635.43)

22.U

Expense notdedLrctibte in determining taxabte profits
O€duction under section 80tA
Others

Tax Exp€nse for the
48.86 36.98

3lst March 2022

5,868.92

Particulars
Asat

31n Mar.h 2022

As et
3lst March ZO23

Rr r.\r\



The company has not exercised the option permitted under section 1158AA ofthe tncome-t ( Act, 1961 as introduced bythe
Taxation Laws (Amendment) ordinance, 2019 as company is under tax holiday period as per section 8olAofthe lncome Tax Act,
1961.

Non-Cunent Fln.nci.l Assets - Orhe6

31!t March 2023
&.1

:!lrt March 2022
Security Oeposits

{Unsecured, considered Sood ) 0.32

Not€ E CurrentAss€ts - tnv€ntories

3l.st March 2023

WP- Raillng andSignboard

11.15

77.41
Grand Total

88.56

Not€ 9 Current FinancialAss€ts -Trade R€ceivabtes

31rt March 2023 31n M.rch 2022
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good
Undisputed Trade Receivabtes - Considered Ooubtfut
Disputed Trade Rec€ivables - Considered Good
Di9puted Trade R€ceiva bles - Considered Doubtfut

Grand Totat
0.06 27.87

Outstandin8 for fottowing period from du€ date A5 at
31rt March 2023

At at
31rt M.rch 2022

Less than 6 months

l-2yea6
2-3 years

0.06 27 _81

Grand Total
0.06 21.87

The 
'arryint 

amounts of trade receivables as at the reportint date approximat€ Ian vatue. Trade receavabtes are predominantty non-interestbearint.Trade receivabter are shown net of an a owancefor bad or dou btfut debts.

Note 10 Current FlnanctatAss€ri - Crsh and C.sh Equivalentt

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Cash on hand

Eahnc€r With Sant:
(a)ln CurrenrAc€ounr5
(b)ln Fixed Oeposits - Originat Maturity of 3 Months or t€ss

6.24

2.18

128.4s

r,546.72

o.1a

Grand Total
9.20 1,787.O1

'. 
f||.balancet 

ana letm deposits wirh bank by the companv on a shorr-term basrs with originar maturity of three months or l",s. Thecarrying arnount ofcash equivelent5 as at reporting date at fairvalue.

GrandTotal
o.32

As at
31n M.rch 2022

0.06 27.87

11.84



Not€ 11 Current EinancialAssets - Loans

3lst March 2023

X ofTotalLoan

31st Merch 2023
runs.cur.d. consldcr.d roodl
(altoans and Advances to Promote6

lb)loans endAdvances to Directo6 (Refer Note 11(a)b€low)

(c)Loans andAdvances to KMPt

(d) Loans and Advances to Related Parti€s (Refer Note 11(a) betow)

0.m%

2_4996

0.0096

68.17%

33-84

924.62

397.92 29.34%(€) Loans and Advances to Panies OtherThan R;lared Pa.ties
(Refer Note r1(b) below)

31st March 2022

X of Total Loan

31st March 2022
lUngecured. conald€red roodl
(alLoans and Advances to Promote6

{b)roans and Advances to oirectoB (ReferNote 11(a)below)
(c) to.nr and Advances to KMPS

(d) Loan5 and Advances to Related Parties (Refer Note 11(a) betow)

33.84

1,257.19

1,543.66

0.00%

1.19%

0.m%
44.35%

(e)roans and Advancer to Parties OtherThan Relat€d Parties s4.46%

Note 11{a) Loans and Advances to Promoters, Direcro rs, KMps a nd Retated pa ni€s

31st Mar.h 2023 31it Mar.h 2022
(a) v.K. Sancheti {Loan Avlc)

(b) Divinutty Products Private l-lmited

{c)oGcity tife Sciences ttP
(d) San Commercials Private timited
(e)Veel Rag ExploBtion & Min€rals Private timited
(fl Veetrag Hospitality Private Limited

33.84

45.00

80.m
694.54

105.08

33.84

45.00

5.00

80.m

1,022.11

105.08

. loans tiv€n to related parties are repayabte on demand

Not€ 1l(b) Loans and Advancesto Panies Other than R€tat€d par es

31st M.rch 2023 3lrt March 2022
(a) Advance to tmployees
(b)G H Raisoni U niversity Amravati
(.) Fabtech Engine€riry Private t imited

{d) Jain tngineenng Works

0.14

397 -7a

0.02

3m.00

1,243.65

. Loans given to panies othe.than retated parties are repayabte on demand.nd int€rest ischar8ed @ 8% p.e.

Note t2 Oth€r Curr€nt As€ts

31st M.r.h 2023

As at

31n M.rch 2022
TCS on fastaS Vehicles of March 2022 0.20

lncom€Tax Refundable FY 21,22

lncome Tax Refundable Fy 19-20

212_29

333.46

444.99

523.15

386.95

910.301.010.74

Grand Total 1,355.38 1m.mv,

Grand Total 2.8:t4.69 t@.wL

Gran.lTotal 958.45 1,291.03

Grand Total 397.92 1,543.56



Oth..:
MAT Credit Entitlemenl

Add : MAT Credit Recognked in F't 27-23 / fl 27-22
Less : Adiustment of Tax relatingto earlier periods

MAT QCdh EntftbmGnt ror Future Y€..!

1,558.49

(40.40)

(8.45)

1.493.14

174.75

L56a.49

GST Receivable - Cash Led8er

GST Receivable - lnputCredit

1,519.53

0.04

23.56

0.53

1.78

Note 13 Equ ity Share Gpital

31st March 2023
(a) Autho.iz.d caph.al I

1,60,m,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,50,00,000)
Equity Shares ofth€ parvalue of Rs. 10each

1,600.00

(bllsrued I

1,60,m,00O (March 31, 2022: 1,60,00,000)
Equity Shares of the pa. value of Rs- 10 each

(C)Subscrlbed and Pald Up capltal:
1,60,00,000 (March 31, 2022i 1,60,m,mo1

Equity Shares ofthe par valu€ of Rs. 10 each

1,600.00 1,500.00

1,600.00 1,6m.00

Iotal 1,600.00 1,500.@

(d) Reconciliation of numb€r ofshares Outstandin at th€ beginning and end ofthe year

As at 31st MBrch 2023 As at 315t March 2022

Equitysharet

Opening Salance

Add i- hsued durinS thevear
1,60,00,000 1,60,00,000

Sharer outstandin& end of th€ 1,60,00,000 1,60,m,000

As at 3lst March 2023 As at 315t March 2022

Equity rhar€s

Opening Salance

Add :- lssued duringtheyear
1,600.00 1,600.00

Shares outstandin& €nd of the y€ar r,600.00 t,6@.00

(e)Detaik ol shar€holders h re than 5% of the ag8resate shar€s in the company:

As at 31st March 202J As at 3lst March 2022

Equilysh6rerof Rs.10.ach tully patd up h€td by;
sMS Ltd. (Holdinr Company) 1,60,m,000 1,60,00,000

Total 1,60,00,000 1,50,m,(m

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

t%l l%t
Equityshares of R!. 10.ach futty peid up hetd by:
SMS Ltd. (Holdins Company) 100.00% 100.m%

Total 100.00ri 1m.0016

t

G.andfotal 2,630.41 4@4.75

31st March 2022

1,500_00



(f) Details of rharehotding of Promotcrs atthe end ofrhe yea. tn the com

As .t 31st March 2023 As at 31n Ma.ch 2022

llo. of Shares o. ol Sharcs
Equity shar.sof Ri. 10.ach lully paid up held by:
SMS Ltd. (Holdint Company) 1,50,00,000 1,60,00,000

Tot.l 1,60,00,000 1,60,m,m0

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

t%l l%t
Equityshar€s ofRs.l0cach fullypaid up held by
SMS Ltd. (Holdint Company) 100.00% 1m.00%

Total 100.00% 1m.0016

(gl Terms, RlahB, prcfer.n.€r and R.strlctionr to thc Equltysharcs:
The Company has issued only one class of eq;ii}, share havin8 a par vatue of Rs. 1Ol- p€r share. Each shareholder is entitted to one vote per
share. E.ch share is entitled to €qual.tivid€nd dectared by the company and approv€d by the sharehotders ofth€ company.
ln the ev€nt of liquidation, each share carry equalrights and will be enttled to receave equalamount pershare out ofth€ remaining amount
available after makint p.efential payments.

Pursuant to Concestion ASreement dated 05.03.2013 enter€d into betwe€n rhe company 6nd Nationat Hithway authority of tndte, the
aggretate equity shareholdint of sMslL (Sidder) together with it5 associates , in the issued and paid up equity of the concessionaire shall not
decline below 51% durlnSthe concession penod (Ctause S.:} oftheAgreement)

Nor€ 14 Orher Equity

Retained Earnints

31st March 2023

Ar at
31st March 2022

R.tah.d Earnlngs:

At the commencement of the year

Addr ProfitduringtheYear

Closing Balance

7,5t8.49

20.18

7,s38.68

6,491.28

1,026.22

7,518.49
6rand Total 7,538.58 7,518.49

Note 15 Non{urr€nt tinancial t iabitity - provisions

31n March 2023 31it Ma.ch 2022
Provision forToll Rights 5,499.56

Grand lotal
s,499.56

Note 16 iion{urrent flnanchl Ltabitity - t€as. liabititi€i

As at
313t March 2023

As.t
Slst March 2022

R€nt - FinancialLease Liabilaty
6.12

Grand fotal
6.72

NotG 17 Current Financlal U.bithy-

Ar at

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
SBIOD ASainst FO

1,416-47

1,416.47

Not€ 18 Cur€nt Financiattia bility - Trade Payables

As at
31st March 2023

Aa at
31st March 2022

Micro, Smalland Medium Ente.pris€
Othe6 (p€riod breakupgiven betow)
Disputed - Mlcro, Smattand M€dium Enterprise
Dispured, Others

39.10 2,516.01

GIand Total
39.10 2,516.01

Grand Total



Oulstanding lor followlng periods from duc data of payrh€nt
31st March 2023

As at

31st March 2022
tess than l year

1-2 y€ars

2-3 yea6

39.10 2,516.01

2,516.01

Trade Payables are non-interest beering.
For explanations on the Company,s €redit rjsk manaSement processess, refer to Note.30

f rhere a'e no amounts due to the suppliers covered under Micro, small and M€dium Enterprises D€vetopment Ad, 2mG; this informationtakes into 
'ccount 

only those suppliers who have responded to the enqui.ies made by the company for thk purpose. This has been retied
u pon by the auditors a nd accordin8ty no additiona I disctosures have b€en made.

Not€ 19 Current Financiat Liabi lity - Other tinanrialLiabitities

Uns€cured Loani - Repayablc on Dernand
- from SMs Limited
-from Eafa Earth Nrovers t-imited
- from Badjate Stock BrokinS pvt Limited
- from Spark Mall& parking pvt Limited
- from EaisakhiIrade Link prt Limited
Totel

OtherPayableg

S€curity Deposit for Sate ofSmanCard
salary & Wages Payabte

Provirion for Consu kancy Charges

Stipefld Payabte

!abourPayment payabte

Sonus Payable

Telephone & tnt€rnet Exp payabte

Power and light payabl€

Nieal Card Liabitities p

5,424.6'1

500.m

92.O7

2,945-4A

5m.4a

930.@

1,073_98

3m.m

As at
3lst Merch 2023 31st March 2022

5,015.73

9.27

22.5A

3.10

10.28

1.95

1.83

34.50

o.47

174.27

4.67

r3.12

22.67

0.04

0.10
5,054.01 6001.54

Not€ 20 Current tinanciat Llabillty - Provisions

As at
31st Mar.h 2023 31sl M.rch 2022Curr€nt Tar Llabilw:

Provison for lncome Tax

Tot.l r89.70

189.70

Other I

Retention Money from canpati tnfratech
Worl€6 Cess Payabt€

Provldent Fund Payable

TDS Payabl€

GST Payable

TOS/rCS

Grand Totat

0.64

18.50

1.59

0.40

o.22

9.02

34.53

1.52

0.m
20.83 235.38

l{ote 21 Curr€nt Financt.t liabitity - Oth€. Cu.r€nt Uablflties
MobilisationAdvance From

Grand Total

(NHAI)

er

701.44

lol -44

l

39.10

5,749.94

Grand Total



AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMs TOTLS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to and forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

Note 22 Revenue from Operations ln t Lakhs
Period Ended

31st March 2023

Perlod Ended

31st Mar.h 2022

Sale of Services
- Toll colledion
- Construction Revenue

77,793.21
188.64

22,946.24
3S.58

6rand Total 11,981.84 22,987.A2

Note 23 Other lncome

Partiaulars Pedod Ended

31st March 2023
Perlod Ended

31st March 2022

- lnterest lncome
- Miscellaneous lncome

180.88
14.65

188.18
9.11

Grand Total 195.54 L97.30

Note 24 Material Consumed

Particulars Period Ended
31st March 2023

Period Ended
31st Mar.h 2022

Opening Stock
(+)Purchases

C) sales

C) Closing Stock

88.56
222.64

11.46
772.L4

(88.s6)

Grand Total 311.19 695.04

Note 25 OperatinE & Maintenance Expenses

Particulars Period Ended
31st March 2023

Perlod Ended
31st March 2022

Concession Fees
Change of Scope
Additional Fee Charges for Non Fastag Vehicles
Projed Facility Maintenances
Site CivilWork
Machine Hire Char8es
Toll Expenses
Safety & Security Expenses
Annual Maintainance Charges (Toll Collection System)

3,205.67
101.60
58.00
40.40

776.86

6.91
33.87
11.31

27.63
2s3.44
88.81

742.36
68.06
72.6L
55.15
42.77

Grand Tota 3,651.31 690.78

Note 26 Employee BeLefit Expenses

Period Ended

31st March 2023

Perlod Ended

31st March 2022

Salary and Wages
Medical Expenses

Contribution to PF and EStC

StaffWelfare Expenses
Gratuity Expenses
Worker/Labour Cess

476.97
4.19

35.63
12.38

(31.89)

0.87

7,016,72

55.20
16.48
25.t3
o.72

Grand Total 838.15 Lr20.a7

Particulars

Particulars

N\



Note 27 F

Particulars Period Ended
3lst March 2023

Period Ended

31st Ma.ch 2022

lnterest Expense
Bank Charges
Bank Guaaantee Commission

G.and Total

334.23
0.23

20.20

1,037.86
4.44

53.48

354.67 1,095.78

Note 28

Paaticulars

!
Period Ehded

31st March 2023
Period Ended

31st Mar.h 2022(A) Exchange Fluctuationr
Fair Valuation Loss on Equ ity lnstruments
Tota 505.12 7,492.O7

50s.12 7,492.07

(8) Runnint and Maintenance
- Vehicle
- Generator
Repair and Maintenances - Others
lnsurance Expenses
Rent Rates and Taxes
Business Promotion Expenses
Power and LiSht
Lodging and Fooding Expenses
Office Expenses
Transportation
CSR Expenditure
Misclleneous Expenses
Consultancy Charges
Postage and Courier
Printing & Stationery
Audit fees
Telephone, Fax and lnternet Expenses

114.88
149.68

41.83

4.50
25.34

4.19
24.37

15.94
4.38
2.6L

45.50
21.61

7 4.66
0.01
L.70

1.20
3.91

4.S6

141.15

276.6a

4.44

6.37
31.55
18.09
4.42
0.24

3S,00
1.02

103.92
0.03
2.63

1.37

8.46
2.a9

Travelling and Co

Total
547.00 661.73

Grand Total
052.12

Particulars Period Ended
31st March 2023

Period Ended
31st March 2022

Aduarial Loss on Gratuity valuation
Grand Total {0.88)

Note 29

N\



AYOOHYA GOMI(XPURSMS TOII-S PRIVAIf LIMIIID
Notes to Flnanclal St.tem€nB .s at 31st March,2023:

30 Fltlancid nbk Manatement
The Company has exposure tothe following risk arising lrom financial lnstruments:
Credit risk;
Liquidity risk

i. Risl manaSem€nt framewori
Risk ManaSement is the process of identifjcataon, assessment and prioriti.ation of risk followed by coordinated effons to minimize, monitor and
mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate events ot to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company(s) board of
directors is primarily responslble to develop and monitor Company{s)Risk management framework. The Company has latd down a comprehensive Risk
fusessment and Minimiration Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. The Diectors themsekes periodically assess risk in the
internaland externa I environment as also elements of risk ifany, which may threaten the existence of the company,

ii. Oedh.lsl
Credit risk is the.is* offinancial loss to ihe company if a customer or count€rparty to a financial lnstrument tails to meet tts contractual obli8ations.
Credit risk on its receivables is recognis€d on the statement of financial position at the carrying amount ofthose receivable assetj, net of any provisions
for doubtful debt5. Receivable balances and deposit balanc€s are monitored on a r€8ular basis with the resuh that th€ company's e4osure to bad
debt5 is notconsidered to be materialwith an aoorooriate credit historv.
The Company do€s not have any credit risk outside lndia.

c.sh equivahnts & Other bank balances/deposits
The Company held €ash equivalents and other bank balances/deposits of INR 9.20lakhs at Manh 31,2023l[atch 31,2022: tNR 1,787.m bkhs). The
cash equival€nts and other bank balances/deposits ere held with bank cou nterparti€s with good credit ratings.

iii. Liquldlty risl
Uquidity risk js the risk that an entity will encounter difliculty in meetinS obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by deliverinS
cash or another financial assets.

The company i5 exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowinSs and trade and oth€r payables.
The company measures risk byforecasting cash flows.
The company's approach to managing llquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have suf{icient liquidity to meet it5 liabitities when du€
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damaSe to the Company's reputation. The Compeny ensures that is has sufficient fund to meet
expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations.

iv lnterast rate rlsl
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fwure cash flows of a financial instrument willfluctuate because ofchanges in market interest rates.
The Company's exposure to the risk of chanSes in market inter€st rates relates primarily to the Companys long-term d€bt obligations with floatinS
interest rates.
The compeny's exposure to intejest lat6 .sk due to varlabl€ interest rate bo'rowlngs ls as followst

Particula6 31.03.m23 31.03.2022
291.79 833.Ss

Any chonge in interest rotes will couse o chonqe in prclits/loss ol the conpony.

C.pital Manatement
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes assued capital and other equity r€sedes . The prlmary objective.of the
Company's capital Management is to maxjmise shareholders value. The company manaSes its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of
chanSes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants,

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values orfuture cash flows of a financial instrument willfluctuate because ofchanSes in market prices {otherthan
those aising from interest rat€ riskorcurrencl risk).
The company is exposed to price riskdue to investments in equityshar€s and classified asfairvalue through profit and loss.
The company measures riskthrough sensitivity analysis.

particul.rs l{ote No 31.03.2023 !LB.2O22

5 374_6t 479.72
374.51 479.72

Sensitivity Analyrh

lmpact on profit/loss (Rs in lakhs)

for th€ y.arended Mar 31,2023

18.73

For the yeaa ended Mar 31,

2022
lncrease or decrease in Share Price by 5%

Note - ln cose ol decreose in Shore Pice, prolit will reduce ond vice veBo

43.99

Variable Sate borrowinSs (Rs in talhs)

lnvestments in Lrlted tquity Sharer (Rs in t-akhs)

Pric€ Risk Analysis

NN\



31 Contlngent li.bilitlcs and caplt l codmltm.nr
a)Contingent liabilitiesi Rs 22.86 Crores

Pankular

lncomeTaxdemand by lT Dedanment
ServiceTax demand by GST tntelligence Department

33

31st March,2023
Yeerended

31st March, 2022
Rs 5.47 Crores

Rs 17.39 Crores
Rs 4.52 Crores

Rs 17.39 Crores
Rs 22.86 Crores Rs 21.91Crores

1) The lncome Tax Department vide it5 document number IT8A,/A5T/3/156/2O2r-22/1o41c!;876a1l dated rg/o3/2122 denanded an amount of Rs
4,52,00,150/_ aSainst lncom€ Tax Assessment for aY 2015-16. similady, for AY 2016,17 tncom€ Tax oepartment vide its document number
fiBNAsr/s115612o21'22/1041125693(1) dated 21103/2022 made an addition to return income and demand€d an amountof R5 o/-. However, penatty
pro€eedings were initiated in boththe cases u/s 271(1)(c). The company hasfiled appeals with ctT(Appeals)for boththe above mentioned a.y.

2) The lncomeTax Department vide ats document n rmber cPc/2122/a6/312s47291 dated 13171/2022 demanded an amount ofRs 94,82,360/- aSainst
AY2021_22. The companY is jn process offiling Rectification ofthe same. The same has been communicated to the tncome Tax Department vide letter
dated 03/08/2023.

3) show cause cum Demand Notice dated 09.04.2019 vide document number DGGsTUNzu/l10/2018/15s4 was issued by csl tntelligence Depanment
and an amounl of Rs 17,39,03,815/- was demanded against Sedice Tax, fducataon cess, secondary and Hi8her Education cess, sw;chh Bharat cess
and xrishixalyan cess for period from october 2013 tillJuhe 2017. Against the samethe companyfiled its reply dated 06.06.2019. sincethen, the
matter is pendingwithout anyfurther notice from department.

4) The company does not expect any outflow of economic resources in r€spect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.
5) The Company has reviewed allits pending lititations.nd proceedings and has adequately provided forwhere provisions are requked and dtsclosed

contin8ent liabilities wher€ applicable in its flnancial statements. The Company has not provided for o. disclosed continSent liabilities for metters
considered as refiote forpending litiSations wherein the manaSement is confident, based on the lnternal legal assessment and advice of its tawyers
that these latiSations would not result into any liabilities. The cofipany does not €xpect the outcome ofthese proceedings to have a materialadverse
effect on the finan.ial stat€m€nts.

Stamp Ooty t€tter by U.P. Treasury
1) The companv had received notice from Distrlct co llector, uftar Pradesh dated l4thJanuary 2o2o demandang Rs 21.s0 crores pertaining to stamp duty

on the concession agreement between NHAI and AGSTPL for operation and maintenance ofAyodhya-Gorakhpur section in uttar kadelh atong wittr
penalty ofRs 21.50 Crores totaling to Rs 43.00 Crores.

2) ln FY 19_20 and 20_21, the com pany had deposited prancipal amou nt of stamp duty amounting to Rs 21.50 crores against notice received from District
collector, uttar Pradesh to theTreasury Department {stamp Authorities}of Uttar pradesh. Thts Bmountwas recovered from NHAtoutofthe monthty
concession feet payableto the NHAI. The Company has communiEated this recoveryvide letterdated 19.05.2020 and NHAt has also adjusted the same
Concession Fees as perthe statement ofaccounts provided to us.

3) The company has again received notice from District collector, utta. Pradesh 2oth May'2o22with regard to interest Rs 27.41crores and penatty Rs
21-50 Crores totaling to Rs 48.91c.ores on stamp duty l€vi€d on the concession aSreement between NHAtand AGsTpL

4) The com pany has filed various representations for withd rawal of ord€r for collection of stamp d uty trom concessions entered with N HAI fo. to
collection, on theSround that stamp duty not applicable on th€ infrastructure facilities dev€loped by NHAt. FunherNHAtand Ministry ot Road,
Transport and HiShways_ Government of lndia has elsofilled representations to state Government of uttar pradesh on th€ above gro;nds.

5l rhe company has also reviewed and compared the concession eSreement of NHA|with company and recent tend€/s issued by th; NHAl. tn the rec€nt
tende/s, NHA|has in€orporated additionalterms and conditions wheretn case the stamp duty levied by state Governmentthe; the amountwil be
born€ byconcessioner. How€ver, this condition is not applicable in our casesincethere are no prescribed terms and conditions in our concession
aSreeinent evidenced by abov€ adiustments through statement of Accounts of NHAt. This amend€d terms ctearty hiShtights that prospectively NHAI
willnot bearthe costofstamp duty butthe amended terms willnot be applicabte for previous concession agreement with the company.

6) ln view of the ebov€ developm€nts the companY is of the view that in case the 5tamp authoriti€s recover€d the interest and penalty from the company
in future, then the said amount will be recovered from NHAI as evidenced by above adjustments through statement ofAccounts of NHA|. Accordin8ty,
ifliabilily arises in futurethe same willbe born€ €xclusively by NHAland there willnot b€ eny impact on th€ company,s financial statement.

31st March,2023
? Laths

Yearend€d
31st March,2022

t Lrkh!
As auditors - Statutory audit
Tar audit
Management Consultancy

0.45

0.25

0.30
0.20

0.45

0.25

0.30

0.20
1.20 1.20

There are no amounts due to the suppliers covered under Mic.o, Smail and M€dium Enterpnses o€vetopment Act, 2m6j this information takes jntoaccount only those suppliers who have responded to the enquiries made by th" co-p"nf'r-or'ir,r pu.pose. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Payment to the auditors

34
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35 Corporate Socl.l R.sponslbillty
As per sectaon 135 ofthe companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the applicabality threshold, needs to spend at tean 2% of its aver.ge net profits for
the immed:ately preceeding three financialyea.s on corporate social responsibility (csR) activtties. The areas for cSR activities areeradication of
hungerand malnutrition, promotinS education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute €3re and rehabilitation, envaronhent sustainabiltty, disaster r€lief
and rural development projects. ACSR committe? has beenformed by the Company as per the Act.

I Lakhs

Proposed to be sp€nt towardr Gross Amount R€quired to te
spent ror FY 22-23

Excess o, FY 21-22

adjuiled Spent
Education prolnotion or Health care faciiities/ program me

and espousing social causes.

Spentthrouth GH Aaisoni Univ€Elty, Amravati

45.77

TollCollection

A G ross amount required to be spent by the Company for FY 2022-23 was Rs 45,71,206/, towards csR erpenditure. Out of this the company had an
excess amount spend of Rs 45,788/- r€latang to FY 2O21-22 which is allowed to be setoffagainst Current year expenditure.

l The galance CSR amount of Rs.45,24,418/- wes proposed to bespenttowirds Education promotion or Health care lacitities/ proS6mme and
espouslng social causes,

c The companyspent an amount ofRs 45,60,mo/- towards educational promotioo through Institution named GH Raasoni u niversity, Amravati. lt is a
Private University established under Madhya Pradesh, Niii Vishwavidyalaya Adhiniyam 2OO7 in theyear 2016-17 and is entaSed in imparting education
and operat€s in one seSment predominantly ln lndia.There was noshortfallin amount spent for current or any ofthe pr€vious Financialyears.

d Excess amount ofRs 3S,S82l_ overand abovethe requirement specified underthe Act for FY 2022,23 is carried forward and willbe set oflin the
ensuing FY 2023,24 as CSR Contribution ifapproved by the Ministry.

S€gment inlomatlon
Primary businc5s segments
The Group has organized its operations into two business segmentsrToll Collection and Construction
Toll Coll€.tion:
collection oftoll as per the contracts ent€red wlth various Gov€rnment authoriti€s and providing road, repair and maintenance of
.llied structures to its subsidiaries.
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Con,trudion:
Constrirction olroads as perthe EngineerinS, Procurementand Constarction (EPCIContracts entered into for ex€cution.
The followingtables present revenue and profit information re8arding the business seSments for the year end€d March 31,2023 and certain asset aod
liability information reSarding tndustry segments as at Maich 31,2023
lnf ormation about reportable segm€nts

P.niculars Construction

Revenue

[xternal customers
lnter-segment
Total Revenue

Segttlent proth / (loss)

t elo.G exc€ptional ltems and tax
ldentif iable operating erp€ns€s

Depreciation and amortiIation
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Capitalexpenditure

11,793.27

11,793.27

2,585.69

188.64

lAA_64

87.03

101.60

11,981.84

2,77r.72

101.60

11,981.84

9,106.52
13,262.61

6,123.93

Reconciliation ofinformation on.eportabte setments to tnd AS

Particulars
Totalproflt before exceptional items and tax for repo(able
seSments

Unallocated amounts:

- Other Expenses

-Other lncome
Total profitbeforeerceptionel itemsandtarfromoperations

ietaled p.rty Dt d6!r€
a) Names of r.lated Fd6 r'h.re @nrol ql3ts

Not€ As at March 31, 2023

2,773.72

12,9@.221
195.54

69.04

o.47 45.50

I lakhs

Total
S€8mcnB

9,106.52
15,262.67

5,123.93

HoldinECompany:
SMS Limited



List or.ll Subsldhrks, Associ.tes, ,olnt V.nturE ot HoHing Company.re .i tollows:
' sutiidi.ry Companles

l SMSWaste luanagement pvt.l,td. 10 SMS_AABS tndiaTollways private Ljmited
2 SMS Ehvoclean Pvt. ttd 11 Maha.ashtE Envtro power Ltd.
3 SMS lnfolink An. Ltd. 12 pT. SMS Mines tndonesia
4 SMS MininS Umited 13 pT. SMs Minerals tnternational
5 Spar& Mall & Parking P!t. Ltd. 14 SMS Hazardous Waste Mana8ement pvt. Ltd
6 SMS Tari Cabs Pvt. t-td. {Formerly Known as SMS Mine Oevelopers pvt. Ltd)7 SMS Vidyut Pvr. Ltd. 15 SMSL Ketki MOO proj€ct timited
8 sMS WaterGBce BMW Pvt. Ltd
9 SMS Tolls And Developers ttd.

1 RCC! tnfraskucture Ltd_

r ,oint Ventuaes

1 Bhartia SMSTL (JV)

2 cocl & sMs nd.JV
3 SRRCTP L-sMSl, (JV)

4 SRRCtPt--5MSt-SEKEMJV

5 SMS lnfrastructure ltd , Aarti tntra,projects pvt. Ltd.J.V.
6 SMSTL-M8P[-BRAPI-(JV)

7 GSI Envo Ltd. tn consorUon with SMS tnfrastructure Ltd.
8 Sanbro Corporation
9 MeShe Sms Heatth Sciences Consor um (SpV)

10 SMS tnfrastructure Ltd. Shreenath Enterprises J.V.

l(ey management personnel:
Mr. Dilip Surana, ManaglnS Director
Mr. Dattatraya Xinage, WholeTihe Oarector (Resigned on 31st march 2023)
Mr. VijaySancheti, Whole Time Director (Resigned on 3lstmarch 2023)
Mr. Akshay Abhay Sancheti, Director (Appointed on Olst April2023)
Mr. Pradyumna Paraniape, Director
Mr. Eadrish Naklak, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Ankita Hand€, CompanySe.retary

Other Related Parties
Atul Muhiobj€stives OrSanisation
Divinutty P.oducts Private Limited
Oracity Life Sciences LtP

San Commercials PrivBte Limited
San Finance Corporation
Veet Rag Exploration & Minerals pvr Ltd
Veetrag Hospitality Pvt Ltd

Oisclosures of materi.l transactions with rctated perties end b.lances

SMS Llmited

2 SMS AAMW Tollways Pvt. Ltd.

11 SMS lnfrastructure Ltd. & D. Thakkar Construction tM. Ltd..,V
12 ShaktlkumarM. SanchetiLtd. & S N Thakka. Construction hn. t-td. JV
13 SMSrr KrCOllv)
14 SMSII-M8Pr(JV)
15 SMSL-SRRC|P|- UV)
16 AGrPt-SM5tr(JV)

17 Saket-SMStL(lV)
18 SRRC|P[-SMS|, (lv)-Mahabubnagar

Reimbursement of expenses o.72
(0.66)

Other Services Rendered
(Advance for Survey)

3.09

Unsecured Loan Taken

(-)

o

(-)

lJnsecured loan Repayment

9,545.21
(7,730.80)

7,066.02
(5,066.3s)

(-)

N.me of the related pany Nature oftransactions Volum€ of Transactions

durinBthe Payabl€ /

NET UNSECURED LOAN PAYABI-E

\p\

c)

5A24.67

(2,945.43)



Divinutty Products Private umited

Oracity tife Sciences LLP

San Commercials Pvt Ltd

Veetrag Bospitality P\t Ltd

lVeet Rag Explorataon & Minerals pvt Ltd

Spark Malland Parkin8 private Umited

Mr. Vijay Kisanlal Sancheti,
Whob nme Dir€ctor

Mr- Dattatraya taxmanrao Kinate,
Whole Time Director

Ms. Ankita Hande
CompanySecretary

Sale of Faxed Assets

Vehicle Hire CharSes

Payment of BG commission

Loan Given
(NET LOAN RECEIVABTE)

(R€ceived)

(NET LOAN RECEIVASLE)

Loan Given
(NET LOAN RECEIVABLE)

Loan Given

(NET I.OAN RECEIVABTE)

toan Repaid

ET UNSECUREO LOAN PAYABLE

Salary

Sonus

N

Loan given

NIT IOAN RECEIVAEI."E

Salary

Bonus

Conveyance Reimbursement

Salary

Eonus

(0.

159.73
(2s2.6s)

t.s2
(2.s0)

(17.s8)

(-)

5

{)

(-)

(-)

961

(-)

1,288.57

(-)

7,O13.

18.

111

(-)

(28.30)

(3

2.

2.4A

4.88

0.18

(-)

(')

{')

45.00

14s.0o)

o

(80.00)

{105.08)

(-)

(594.s4)

(-)

G)

o

(-)

(NET LOAN RECEIVABLT)

N\



Oth€r Adva nces for expenses
Mr. Vijay Kisanlal Sancheti,
Whole Time Director

1

(0.40)

Mr. Dattatraya La(manrao Kinage,

WholeTime Okector
0.39

(-)

tootnotes:

li) FiSures in brackets arethe correspondinS figures in respect ofthe previous year.
(ii) #M obilization Advence is in r€spect of Change of scope Work.

Basic earnings per shar€ have been calculated by dividin8 profit aft€r tax attributable to equity shareholders by th€ weighted average number of equitysharcs
outstanding during the year. The companv has not issued any potential equity shares and a;cordingly, the basic earninSs p€r share and diluted €arninSs per
share are the same. Values used in calculating earnjngs pershare are as under:

31st March,2023 31st March,2022
20.18

1,60,00,0m

38

Partlcula.

(a) Numerator: Profit after tax (in'takhs)
(b) Denominator:

Weighted averate number of equtty shares
(c) Basic, aswellas diluted, ea.ninSs per equityshare (in

39 Capital Commitments

P.rticular

Estimated amount of contracts remaini.g
to be a(ecuted on capjtal account(Ov€rlay) {n€t ofadvances)

40

pankubt

Employer's contribution to provident Fund
Emplcyer's contribution to Employee state tnsuEnce
Corporation
Total

Discount Rate

Rete oflncaease in Compensation Levels
Rate of R€turn on Plan fusets
Aveaage Future Service

TABI.E II: CHANGES IN PRESEI{TVAI.UE oI oBIJGAnoNs

perricular

Opening of defi ned b€nefit obl jgations

S€rviceCost

lnterest Cost

B€nefit paid

Actuarial (6ain)/t-oss on totat lia bilities
Clo5ing of defined benetit obtigations

1,026.22

0.13 6.41

Employe€ Ben€fits
A. Deflned Contribotton phn
The company makes provldent fund, Employees state lnsurance and Maharashtra t-abour wetfare Fund contributions tor eliSibl€ emptoyees under theschemes, the company is required to contribute a specified p€rcentage / lixed amount ofthe payrollcosts to fund the benefits. Th; contri;utions as specifiedunderthe law are paid to the respective frrnd set up bythetovernm€nt authority.

The company has recognised the following amounts (Rs in Lakhs) intheStatement of profit and t-oss for the year.

Yeerended
31st March,2023 31st Mar(h,2022

34.12

1.51

52.83

35.63 55.20

B. D.fined Benefrt Obtiga ons - G.atutty
The Sratuity plan is 8ov€rned by th€ Pavment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five years ofservice is entitled to speciflcbenefits. The levelof beneflts provided depends oh the membe/s length ofservice an;saLryat ret,rement age.

TABI-E II ASSUMPTTONS

Assumptions
31st March,2023

Yearended Yearended
315t March,2022

6.19% p€r annum

23.72 Years

3lsi March,2023 3ls! Mar.h,2022
774-27

(151.59)

150.88

15.39

4.74

12.621

0.88
22-6a 774_27

Yearended yearended
31st March,2023 31st March,2022



TASLE III: OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Panicular Yearended
31rt Merch,2023 31st March.2022

OpeninS amount recognized in OCloutside P&Laccount
Actuarial G.inl(Loss) on Liabilities
Aduarial Gain/(Loss) on Assets

Closlng Amount recoSnired ln OCloutside P&Laccoirnt

Present Value of Oblitations
tair Valu€ of Plan Assets

Net ObliSations
Amount not recognired due to Asset Umit
Net Oefined 8en€fit Uability/(As5ets) recognized in Salance
SheEt

41 RATTOS

a. financial Performance Ratio

TAALE lv: THE AMOU T TO BE RECOGNTZED t AAIANCE SHEET STAIEMENT

Panicular
31st Marth.2023 31st Mrnh,2022

22.6a

22.64

174.27

17417

{0.88)

(0.88)

22-6A 714.21

TABI"E V: IXpENSE RECOGNIZED lN STATEMENTOF pROFtT & |-OSS

Particular

Service Cost

Net lnterest Cost

Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss

TABL€Vl: CHANGE lN NET DEFINED OBIIGAIONS

particulat

Openlng of Net Defin€d Benefit Liabitity
service Cost

Net lnterest Cost

Re-measurements

Contribution Paid to Fund
Closing Net Defin€d B€nefit tiability

Yearended
31st March,2023

Yearended
31st M.rch,2022

15.39

8.74

31st March,2023 31st 2022
174_27

(151.59)

150.88
16.39

8.14

0.88

12.62t
22.6a 174_27

Sr No Ratio = Numerator/ Denomin.tor Note No As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31sl March,2021

Current Ratio = CurrentAssets/ Current Liabiliti€s

2 Debi Equity Ratlo = Totat Debts / Shareholders Equity

Debt Servlce Coverage Ratio = EarninSs before tnterest, Tax,
Depreciation & Amortisation / tnterest and principal

Repayment of LongTerrn Debtwithin one year

0.6s

0.66

3.19

o.71

0.63

0.49
3

2

35

46

5

lnterestService Coverage Ratio = Earnings before lnterest
but efterT / tnter€st Expenses

R€tum on Equity R.tio = Profit After Tax /Average
5hareholders Equityr

lnventoryTumover Ratio = Revenue from Operation/
Average lnventory

7.O7

o.0022

857 _91

8.88

2.23 ,109.0316

NA

229.89 7327%

8.54 3-90%

7

8

9

Trade Receivables Turnov€r Ratio = Revenue from
Operations / Averate Trade R€ceivabte5

T6de Pay.bles Tumov€r Ratio = Totatcash €xpens€s /
Av€ra8e Trade payabtes

6
Net Capital Tu.nov€r natio = Revenue from Operations /

Average Worl(ing Capitat
3.57 5.50 -u59%

25.13

-9.50%

4.22%

a7.B%
1

o.tz -s29435%



10 Net Profit R.tlo = ProfitAfterTar / Revenue from Operations 3
0.0017

0.05

0.04 -2ss3.49x

o-25 -436.96%

(o.13) 1a2.77%

11
Retum on C.pitalEmpbyed = Profit before tax and lnterest

/ Capital Employed
6

172
(0.o4)

b. Reasonsforvafance
1 Varieiton ls dueto redudion in debt of the company.

2 Variation is due to decrease in profits because offairvaluation of investments and reduction in debt of the company,

3 Variation is due to Project Completion as revenue was earned till02nd October 2022 but expense were incurred during the whole year

4 lnventory Turnover Ratio is notapplicable to the compani.

5 Variation i5 due to r€duclion inTrade Receivables balance as on 31st March 2023.

6 variation isdue to reduction in Revenuefrom Op€rations as Project 8ot compl€ted on 02nd October 2022.

7 variation is dueto fairvaluation of investments as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022.

The titl€ in respect of self-constructed buildinSs and til€ deeds ofal,other immovable properties (otherthan properties where the CompanYis the lessee and

th€ lease agreements are duly executed in favour ofthe lessee), disclosed in the FinancialStatements inEluded under Property, Plant and Equipment are held

in the name of the Company.

d. TheCompany does not hav€ any BenamiProperty, where any proceeding has been initiated or p€ndin8 againstthe Company for holdingany EenamiProperty

Retum on lnvestments = lncome Generated from

lnvestments / Closing lnvestments

The Company does not have Working Capitaltimit comprising ofFund based and Non Fund based facilities. The Company is also not requked tocomply with

Quarterly lnformation Statement orsubmission ofStock and D€btor Statement on monthlY basis to bank.

j.

The Company has not been declared as a willfuldefault€r by any lenderwho has powers to de€lare a company as a wjllful defaulter at any tlme duringthe
financialyearor afterthe end of reporting period but beforethe date when the financial statements are approved.

8. The Company does 6ot hav€ eny transactions with struck-off companies.

Th€ Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or VirtualCurrency duringthe FinancialYear

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 ofthe Compenies Act 2013 read with Companies (Restrictions

on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company does not have anytransactions which is not recorded in the books ofaccounts but has b€en surrend€red ordisclosed as income durinsthey€ar
in the tax assessm€nts under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or suryey or any other relevant provisions ofthe lncome Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested fundsto any other personls)or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the

understa nding that the intermediary shali :

_ Directv or indirectly l€nd or invest in oth€r pe.sons or €ntities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaff of the Comp.ny (U ltimate
r' 

Beneficiaries), or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofth€ Uhimate B€neficiaries.

Th€ Company has not received anyfundsfrom any person(s)or entity(ies), including foreign efltities (Fundin8 Partylwiththe understanding {whether recorded

in writin8 or otherwise) that the Company shall :

. Directly o r lnd ir€ctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in a ny ma n ner whatsoever by or on behalf of the F und in8 Pa rty (Uhimate
r' 

Beneficiariesl, or
ii. Provide any tuarantee, security orthe like to oron behalfofthe lJltimate Eeneficiaries.

42 Mar8cr ol Ayodhya Gor.lhpu. SMS Tolls privatc l-lmited with SMS Umited

The Company is in process ofMerger with its Parent Company ' sMS LIMITED. The Company vide its Boa.d Resolutioo dated 05th lanuary2023

approved the same. The appointed date of merSeras per merger petitionfiled with NationalCompany Law Tribunal (NCLT) is 01.10.2022. However,

i. finalorder/ approvalfor merger f.om NCIT is in pro€€ss. Due to which, the Company has prepared its financial statement without €onsidering the
mergerdespite thetactthatthe appointed datewas01.10.2022. After approvalfrom NCLT, th€ Company willincorporate the effect of merger in the
year in which approvelwill be received.

ii. Post MerSer, allassets and liabilities willmerge with Parent Company and Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited willceaseto exist.

l_

h. The Company does not have any charSes orsatisfaction which is yet to be registered with the ReSistrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

k.

i.

t.



43 Subsequent Events

As per RBl',s Staiem€nton Developm€ntaland Retulatory Policies issued on May 22,2020, the company has availed the reliefprovided by its lender by way ofmoratorium on certain principal repayments and repayment schedule has been modified accordingly.

44 General:

A. The figures have been rounded offto the nearest rupees lakhs.
B. Any otheraccounting policy notspecifically referred to are consistentwith Indian GAAP.
C- Previous yearfigures are regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary.

For and On Behalfofthe Board ofOirectors
Ayodhya coralhpurSMS To s private t-tmited

Di Surana
Managing Director

DIN:00953495

l>*NU'
Eadrish Naklak

ChieI Financial Officer

Akshay Abhay Sancheti
Okedor

DIN:07564977

Ankita Hande
CompanySecretary


